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DOWRoutinePhotos042722
AI 1643 – Hardin County

DOW Inspector Sara Stewart

April 27, 2022
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L- all blowers well-maintained with good aeration. R – bar screen well-maintained and recently 
cleaned.
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Clarifier had broken bottom arm at the time of the inspection. A pump was being used to circulate 
effluent, with limited effectiveness as shown.
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Evidence of inadequate treatment in dark, cloudy appearance to receiving waters, due to condition of 
clarifier.
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Energy and Environment Cabinet 

Department for Environmental Protection 

Division of Water 
Wastewater Inspection Report 

 

AI ID:    1643            AI Type: SANI-Wastewater Treatment & Collection (2213)    

AI Name:      Airview WWTP 

AI Address:   178 W Airview Dr   

City:    Elizabethtown   State: Kentucky   Zip: 42701     

County:  Hardin Regional Office: Louisville Regional Office 

Latitude: 37.758333    Longitude: -85.892222        

 

Site Contact: Kathy Carey 

Title: Operator   Phone #: (502) 650-5124 

 

Inspection Type:  Wastewater Routine-Minor Non-municipal   

Activity #:   CIN20220001   

Incident IDs:  

Inspection Start Date: April 28, 2022 Time: 12:00 PM  

End Date: April 28, 2022 Time: 01:00 PM  

Site/Permit ID: KY0045390 

 

Lead DEP Investigator: Sara Stewart 

Other DEP Investigators:   

External Investigators:   
Persons Interviewed: Kathy Carey; James Smith 

 

General Comments:  On April 27, 2022 Division of Water (DOW) Inspector Sara Stewart conducted a 

routine inspection to determine compliance with KPDES permit KY0045390 for domestic wastewater 

discharges from Airview Subdivision's wastewater treatment plant (WWTP). DOW was accompanied at the 

time of the inspection by Kathy Carey and James Smith representing Midwest Water Operations, who 

operate under the permittee, Bluegrass Water Utilities. 

 

The facility has one aeration basin, clarifier, and sludge tank with an average flow of 0.034 million gallons 

per day (MGD). A lagoon was formerly used for treatment at the plant but has been taken out of service with 

an ongoing project to utilize the former lagoon as wet weather storage. Flow at the time of the inspection 

was recorded as 30 gallons per minute (GPM), or approximately 0.04 GPD. At the time of the inspection, 

the clarifier was not operating properly. Lower arms had broken off due to age, and supply chain shortages 

resulted in difficulty making repairs. A pump was hooked up in the clarifier for effluent circulation to 

continue, however the effluent appeared cloudy and dark with some scum observed around the top of the 

clarifier. Discharge at Outfall 001, to an unnamed tributary (UT) of Mill Creek, also appeared dark and 

cloudy. 

 

Violations were documented due to visible stream degradation having occurred as a result of the clarifier's 

operational status. DOW recommends the facility begin keeping spare parts available in order for treatment 

systems to continue operating despite needing maintenance or repairs. 

 

Overall Compliance Status:  Out of Comp- Viol documented 

 

Investigation Results 

Case No. 2022-00432
Bluegrass Water's Response to OAG 1-34

Exhibit OAG 1-34
Page 1534 of 2110



AI#: 1643             Page 2   Activity #CIN20220001  :  

SI:  AIOO1643   

SI Description:   
Inspector Comment:  Repairs to the clarifier arms reported as completed on 5/5/2022. 

Requirement:  Does the facility hold the proper KPDES permit?. [401 KAR 5:055 Section 2] 

Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 

Comment:  The facility holds KPDES permit KY0045390, which went into effect on May 1, 2020 and will expire 

on April 31, 2025. 

Requirement:  Is the facility being operated under the supervision of a properly certified operator?  [401 KAR 

5:010 Section 1]. [401 KAR 5:010 Section 1] 

Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 

Comment:  The facility is operated under the supervision of the following certified operator: 

Kathy Carey - Treatment II #31228  

Requirement:  Is the collection system under the primary responsibility of an individual who holds an active 

collection system certification at the level appropriate for the size of the treatment facility receiving the waste? [401 

KAR 5:010 Section 2]. [401 KAR 5:010 Section 2] 

Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 

Comment:  The collection system is under the responsibility of: 

Kathy Carey - Collection II #31241 

Requirement:  Is the facility being properly operated and maintained as specified in regulation 5:065?  This 

includes:                                                                                                                                         (a) proper operation 

and maintenance of all facilities, systems of treatment and control, and related appurtenances which are installed or 

used by the permittee to achieve compliance with permit conditions;                                                                                                                                     

(b) proper operation and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory controls, and appropriate quality assurance 

procedures;                                                                                                                    (c) this provision also requires 

the operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or similar systems which are installed by a permittee only when the 

operation is necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.   [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]. 

[401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 

Compliance Status:   D-Out of Compliance-Violations Documented 

Comment:  The facility is not being properly operated and maintained as required. At the time of the inspection, the 

clarifier was not working properly due to broken bottom arms. Although a pump was hooked up within the clarifier 

to temporarily provide effluent circulation, this was not providing adequate treatment at all times. Effluent within the 

clarifier was observed to be cloudy, indicating a disturbance of the sludge blanket. Repairs had not been completed 

by the time of the inspection due to supply chain issues, however DOW recommends that the facility keep spare 

parts on hand to prevent shortages from impacting treatment processes. 

Requirement:  Are the disinfection unit(s) maintained and operated properly to allow for compliance with permit 

conditions?  [401 KAR 5:005 Section 11]. [401 KAR 5:005 Section 11] 

Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 

Comment:  The facility uses two stacks of chlorine tablets for disinfection, with adequate contact time before 

discharging. 

Requirement:  Have pollutants entered the waters of the Commonwealth? [KRS 224.70-110] 

Compliance Status:   I-No Violations obs-but impending viol trends obs 

Comment:  Surface waters downstream of the discharge point appeared cloudy and dark, indicating that pollutants 

could have entered waters of the Commonwealth. 

Requirement:  Have surface waters been aesthetically or otherwise degraded? [401 KAR 10:031 Section 2]. [401 

KAR 10:031 Section 2] 

Compliance Status:   D-Out of Compliance-Violations Documented 

Comment:  The waters of the Commonwealth have been degraded. The facility discharges to a UT of Mill Creek, 

which appeared cloudy and dark downstream of the outfall at the time of the inspection. 

Requirement:  Is the permittee in compliance for the reporting of spills, bypasses, and non-compliance according 

401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1). [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 

Compliance Status:   I-No Violations obs-but impending viol trends obs 

Comment:  Spills, bypasses, and non-compliance can be reported to DOW by contacting the regional office at (502) 

429-7122 or by calling the 24-hour environmental emergency number at (800) 928-2380. 
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AI#: 1643             Page 3   Activity #CIN20220001  :  

Requirement:  Is the permittee in compliance with immediate reporting requirements for emergency or accidental 

releases to the environment according to 401 KAR 5:065 Section 3(5)?. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 3(5)]. [401 KAR 

5:065 Section 3(5)] 

Compliance Status:   I-No Violations obs-but impending viol trends obs 

Comment:  Any emergency or accidental release to the environment must immediately be reported to DOW as soon 

as the facility becomes aware. 
 

Documentation 

  Photos taken     Record of visual determination of opacity 

  Documents obtained from facility     Samples taken by DEP 

  Samples taken by outside source     Regional office instrument readings taken 

  Request for Submission of Documents    Other documentation 

 

Inspector: 

X

Signed by: Sara Stewart - Local Cert  

 

 

 

Date:            May 27, 2022 

 

Received By:          Title:              Date:       

Delivery Method: Email 
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Brian Rice  

Utility Inspector 

Kentucky Public Service Commission 

P.O. Box 615 

Frankfort, KY 40602 

 

sent via email: brian.rice@ky.gov 

 

August 30, 2022 

 

 

Subject:  Periodic Wastewater Inspections – Response to Deficiencies   

Carriage Park – No Discharge  

   

Mr. Rice –  

 

This letter is submitted in response to your Inspection Report dated June 1, 2022. Bluegrass 

Water purchases distressed small water and wastewater systems that often require extensive 

upgrades and repairs.  Bluegrass Water transforms these utilities by using technology and 

innovation to quickly assess and invest in infrastructure that meets or exceeds state and federal 

standards. We have made considerable progress on corrective actions at eighteen facilities 

purchased in Kentucky since 2019. Based on your Inspection Report we understand the 

following deficiencies need addressed at this time.  

 

Carriage Park Deficiency 

• The entrance gate to the lagoon has a large gap between the two swinging gates. This 

causes concerns for unauthorized persons and animals to enter the lagoon area. This is 

contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

 

• Bluegrass Water conducted initial fence repairs in early 2021. We acknowledge 

additional improvements need made to the gate. Recently, local fencing contractors have 

been unavailable to complete this repair. I have submitted a work request to the operator, 

and he plans to design and implement a corrective action by September 2, 2022. 

 

We appreciate your ongoing compliance assistance at our facilities throughout Kentucky. If you 

have any questions regarding this submittal, please contact me directly at 314-464-3976 or 

msappington@cswrgroup.com. 

 

Sincerely,  

  
Amanda Sappington 

EHS Compliance Manager 
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Brian Rice  

Utility Inspector 

Kentucky Public Service Commission 

P.O. Box 615 

Frankfort, KY 40602 

 

sent via email: brian.rice@ky.gov 

 

August 30, 2022 

 

 

Subject:  Periodic Wastewater Inspections – Response to Deficiencies   

  Golden Acres – NPDES KY0044164 

 

Mr. Rice –  

 

This letter is submitted in response to Inspection Reports dated August 1, 2022. Bluegrass Water 

purchases distressed small water and wastewater systems that often require extensive upgrades 

and repairs.  We have made considerable progress on corrective actions at eighteen facilities 

purchased in Kentucky since 2019. Based on feedback received during the Inspection, Bluegrass 

water has addressed the following deficiencies.  

 

Golden Acres Deficiency 

• There’s a gap between the ground and the bottom of the entrance gate large enough to 

allow unauthorized persons or animals to enter the wastewater treatment facility. This is 

contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

 
• The Bluegrass Water Regional Manager previously submitted a work request to the 

operator and this corrective action was completed in June 2022. Additional rock was 

added at the bottom of the gate to fill this gap, see attached Photo.  
 
We appreciate your ongoing compliance assistance at our facilities throughout Kentucky. If you 

have any questions regarding this submittal, please contact me directly at 314-464-3976 or 

msappington@cswrgroup.com. 

 

Sincerely,  

  
Amanda Sappington 

EHS Compliance Manager 
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Brian Rice  

Utility Inspector 

Kentucky Public Service Commission 

P.O. Box 615 

Frankfort, KY 40602 

 

sent via email: brian.rice@ky.gov 

 

August 30, 2022 

 

 

Subject:  Periodic Wastewater Inspections – Response to Deficiencies   

  Randview – No Discharge 

 

Mr. Rice –  

 

This letter is submitted in response to Inspection Reports dated August 1, 2022. Bluegrass Water 

purchases distressed small water and wastewater systems that often require extensive upgrades 

and repairs.  We have made considerable progress on corrective actions at eighteen facilities 

purchased in Kentucky since 2019. Based on feedback received during the Inspection, Bluegrass 

water has addressed the following deficiencies.  

 
Randview Deficiencies 

• The first lagoon is not enclosed within a fence. This is contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, 

Section 7(1). 

• There are no signs around the first lagoon indicating the nature of the facility and 

advising against trespassing. This is contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

• Parts of the fence around the second lagoon is either damaged or broken and other areas 

of the fence are laying on the ground. This is contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

• There are no signs around the second lagoon indicating the nature of the facility and 

advising against trespassing. This is contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

• There's no access road to the second lagoon. This contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 

7(1). 

• Vegetation is growing in the lagoon, on the banks and around the area of the lagoon. This 

is contrary to 807 KAR 5:071 (1). 

 

Mayfield Electric and Water Systems contacted Bluegrass with an interest in purchasing this 

system to provide service to local customers. On August 18, 2022, Bluegrass Water entered into 

a contract to sell the system to this entity. Currently, Bluegrass continues to perform routine 

operations and maintenance but future upgrades to the system will be the responsibility of 

Mayfield Electric and Water Systems.  
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At this time Bluegrass will proceed with the following corrective actions: 

• Enclose both lagoons with a fence that is designed, constructed and operated in 

accordance with 807 KAR 5:071 Section 7(1). 

• Bluegrass will post signs indicating the nature of the facility and advising against 

trespassing at both lagoons, in accordance with 807 KAR 5:071 Section 7(1). 

• The lack of an access road to the second lagoon prevents regular mowing and removal of 

large woody vegetation. Mayfield Electric and Water Systems will assume ownership of 

the system in early 2023. This is a significant upgrade that may not be achievable prior to 

the ownership transfer. Bluegrass will work with Mayfield Electric and Water Systems to 

determine the best path to address these deficiencies.  

 

We appreciate your ongoing compliance assistance at our facilities throughout Kentucky. If you 

have any questions regarding this submittal, please contact me directly at 314-464-3976 or 

msappington@cswrgroup.com. 

 

Sincerely,  

  
Amanda Sappington 

EHS Compliance Manager 
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Brian Rice  

Utility Inspector 

Kentucky Public Service Commission 

P.O. Box 615 

Frankfort, KY 40602 

 

sent via email: brian.rice@ky.gov 

 

September 9, 2022 

 

 

Subject:  Periodic Wastewater Inspections – Response to Deficiencies   

Woodland Acres – KY0091600  

   

Mr. Rice –  

 

This letter is submitted in response to your Inspection Report dated August 9, 2022. Bluegrass 

Water purchases distressed small water and wastewater systems that often require extensive 

upgrades and repairs.  Bluegrass Water transforms these utilities by using technology and 

innovation to quickly assess and invest in infrastructure that meets or exceeds state and federal 

standards. We have made considerable progress on corrective actions at eighteen facilities 

purchased in Kentucky since 2019. Based on your Inspection Report we understand the 

following deficiencies need addressed at this time.  

 

Woodland Acres Deficiencies 

• No safety grating over top the digester or handrails for safety concerns. This is contrary 

to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

• No safety grating over top the equalization flow tank or handrails for safety concerns. This is 

contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

 

o Final grating will be installed by October 15, 2022. Grating improvements were 

made in May 2022, and ninety percent of the facility is currently covered as part 

of the ongoing capital improvements.  The remainder has not been covered 

because there are no support beams that could support the grating.  Grating was 

delayed in some areas to avoid a false sense of security in people's mind and 

people may walk on and fall in the treatment facility.   

 

• The clarifier is murky. This is a sign that the treatment plant is not functioning properly. 

This is contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

• At the time of the inspection, a foul odor was coming from the treatment plant. This is contrary to 

807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

 

o At the time of the inspection, the facility was recovering from a high flow event. 

Currently the facility has clear and odor free water.  
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• There is an air leak in the clarifier. This is contrary to 807 KAR 5:071, Section 7(1). 

o The air leak was repaired in May 2022. Bluegrass Water’s capital improvement 

plan for this facility includes an upgraded air system.  

 

We appreciate your ongoing compliance assistance at our facilities throughout Kentucky. If you 

have any questions regarding this submittal, please contact me directly at 314-464-3976 or 

msappington@cswrgroup.com. 

 

Sincerely,  

  
Amanda Sappington 

EHS Compliance Manager 
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Brian Rice 
Utility Inspector 
Kentucky Public Service Commission 
P.O. Box 615 
Frankfort, KY 40602 

 
sent via email: brian.rice@ky.gov 

 

September 20, 2022 
 
 
Subject: Periodic Wastewater Inspections – Response to Deficiencies 

Carriage Park – No Discharge 
 
Mr. Rice – 

 
This letter is submitted as an addendum to my August 30, 2022 letter indicating the large gap 
between the two swinging gates would be eliminated by September 2, 2022. Please find 
attached, the photos of the completed corrective action.  

 
We appreciate your ongoing compliance assistance at our facilities throughout Kentucky. If you 
have any questions regarding this submittal, please contact me directly at 314-464-3976 or 
msappington@cswrgroup.com. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
  Amanda Sappington 
EHS Compliance Manager 
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Energy and Environment Cabinet 
Department for Environmental Protection 

Division of Water 
Wastewater Inspection Report 

 
AI ID:    44397             
AI Type: RESIDENCE- Subdivision (nec)    
 
AI Name:      Darlington Creek HOA Subd 
AI Address:   US 27 S & KY 154 
City:    Alexandria, State: Kentucky Zip: 41001     
 
County:  Campbell  
Regional Office: Florence Regional Office 
Latitude: 38.853333    Longitude: -84.386667        
 
Site Contact: Zachary Wilson 
Title: WWTP Operator    
 
Inspection Type:  WW CEI-Minor Non-Mun   
 
Activity #:   CIN20220002   
 
Inspection Start Date: Dec. 8, 2022 Time: 12:40 PM End Date: Dec. 8, 2022 Time: 02:50 PM  
 
Site/Permit ID: KY0105325 
 
Lead DEP Investigator: Jeff Malsi 
Persons Interviewed: Zachary Wilson 
 
General Comments:  Treatment facility consists of two treatment plants.  The combined flow of the 
treatment plants then flows to a common Chlorine Contact Tank.  Treatment plants were being properly 
operated and maintained. The overall rating of this inspection is Out of Compliance - Violations 
Documented.  This was due to permit limit exceedances and failure to include all test data on DMRs.  
 
Overall Compliance Status:  Out of Compliance- Violations documented 
 
Investigation Results 
SI:  AIOO44397   
SI Description:   
Inspector Comment:   
Requirement:  Does the facility hold the proper KPDES permit?. [401 KAR 5:055 Section 2] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Facility holds a permit that became effective on July 1, 2019.  The permit will expire June 30, 2024. 
Requirement:  Have all required permits been obtained from the Division of Water prior to the construction or 
modification of the facility?   [401 KAR 5:005 Section 1] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  No construction or modification of the treatment plant has occurred. 
Requirement:  Is the facility being operated under the supervision of a properly certified operator?  [401 KAR 
5:010 Section 1] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
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Comment:  Facility is operated under the supervision of Zachary Wilson, a properly certified operator. 
Requirement:  Is the collection system under the primary responsibility of an individual who holds an active 
collection system certification at the level appropriate for the size of the treatment facility receiving the waste? [401 
KAR 5:010 Section 2] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Collection system in under the primary responsibility of Kathy Carey who holds an active collection 
system certification at the appropriate level. 
Requirement:  Does the permittee retain records of all monitoring information including: the date, exact place, and 
time of sampling or measurements; the name of the individual who performed the sampling or measurements; the 
dates and times analyses were performed; the name of the individual who performed the analyses; the analytical 
techniques or methods used; the results of the analyses; all calibration and maintenance records and all original strip 
chart recordings for continuous monitoring instrumentation; copies of all reports required by this permit; and records 
of all data used to complete the application for this permit, for the period required by the cabinet and at a minimum 
of at least three (3) years from the date of the sample, measurement, report, or application? [401 KAR 5:065 Section 
2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Records are stored electronically.  Permittee sent requested records to inspector. 
Requirement:  Is the facility required to prepare and implement a groundwater protection plan (GPP) as specified in 
regulation 401 KAR 5:037?  If yes, does the facility have a GPP?. [401 KAR 5:037] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Waste water treatment plants are required to have a GPP.  Facility has a GPP. 
Requirement:  Is the permittee reporting monitoring results to the cabinet at the intervals specified in the permit?  
[401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) for the first through third quarters  2022 were reviewed as part 
of this inspection. 
 
The DMRs were submitted at the proper intervals. 
Requirement:  Are the monitoring results reported to the cabinet on a Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR)?  [401 
KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  The facility has migrated to the federal EPA's Net DMR data base for the submission of DMRs. 
Requirement:  If the permittee monitors any pollutant more frequently than required by the permit, using test 
procedures approved under 40 CFR Part 136 or as specified in the permit, are the results of this monitoring included 
in the calculation and reporting of the data submitted in the DMR?  [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   D-Out of Compliance-Violations Documented 
Comment:  The facility has failed to include results of all monitoring completed in addition to the requirements 
specified in the permit for the second quarter 2022 DMR.  
 
Facility's records indicate that during the second quarter 2022 multiple sampling was conducted during June having 
the following results:  
-TSS lab results of 100 and 1.6.   
The DMR only reported 1.6. 
-CBOD lab results of 61 and No Detect.   
The DMR only reported 2.0 
-Ammonia as N lab results of 1.95 and 0.35.   
The DMR only reported 0.35. 
-E.coli had three samples taken during June with lab results of;  >2420, 219 and 36.   
The DMR reported 190.0.   
This parameter requires a geometric mean calculation.  A geometric mean of the three lab values would be 267. 
Requirement:  Are the calculations for all limitations which require averaging of measurements utilizing an 
arithmetic mean unless otherwise specified by the Cabinet in the permit?  [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   D-Out of Compliance-Violations Documented 
Comment:  The facility has failed to utilize the arithmetic mean for TSS, BOD and Ammonia during second quarter 
2022.  The facility failed to perform proper Geometric mean on E. coli during second quarter 2022..  
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Requirement:  Is the permittee in compliance for the reporting of spills, bypasses, and non-compliance according 
401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1). [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  No spills, bypasses or any other non-compliance are known to have occurred since last inspection. 
Requirement:  Is the permittee in compliance with immediate reporting requirements for emergency or accidental 
releases to the environment according to 401 KAR 5:065 Section 3(5)?. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 3(5)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  No emergency or accidental releases to the environment are known to have occurred since last 
inspection. 
Requirement:  Is the facility being properly operated and maintained as specified in regulation 5:065?  This 
includes:                                                                                                                                         (a) proper operation 
and maintenance of all facilities, systems of treatment and control, and related appurtenances which are installed or 
used by the permittee to achieve compliance with permit conditions;                                                                                                                                     
(b) proper operation and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory controls, and appropriate quality assurance 
procedures;                                                                                                                    (c) this provision also requires 
the operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or similar systems which are installed by a permittee only when the 
operation is necessary to achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit.   [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Facility was being properly operated and maintained. 
Requirement:  Are the disinfection unit(s) maintained and operated properly to allow for compliance with permit 
conditions?  [401 KAR 5:005 Section 11] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Disinfection unit was being properly operated and maintained. 
Requirement:  Does the flow measuring device measure all flow received at the WWTP?  For large wastewater 
facilities (average daily design capacity  >50, 000 gpd),  is flow measured by an indicating, recording, and totalizing 
flow measuring device?  [401 KAR 5:005 Section 12] 
Compliance Status:   N-Not Applicable 
Comment:  The average daily design capacity of this treatment facility is 0.0495 MGD.  This places the facility in 
the intermediate class.  The facility is not required to have an indicating, recording and totalizing flow measuring 
device. 
Requirement:  Is a source of water provided for cleanup?  If potable water is used, is a backflow preventor installed 
to protect the water supply?  [401 KAR 5:005 Section 10(6)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  A frost proof yard hydrant exists at the plant on its own water meter. Backflow prevention is provided 
by the backflow preventer in the meter setter box. 
Requirement:  Has fencing with a lockable gate been installed around the wastewater treatment plant?  [401 KAR 
5:005 Section 10(7)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Facility is surrounded by a fence with a lockable gate. 
Requirement:  Has an all-weather access road been installed to allow access to the wastewater treatment plant?  Is 
the road adequately maintained to allow access to the facility for operation and maintenance activity?  [401 KAR 
5:005 Section 10(8)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  An all weather access road is in place. 
Requirement:  Sewage sludge.  Did the facility meet the requirements governing the disposal of sewage sludge 
from publicly owned treatment works, in accordance with 40 CFR Part 503?  [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(4)] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  When needed, a sewage pump truck is used to remove solids. 
Requirement:  Is the effluent in compliance with KPDES permit limitations?  Do the Discharge Monitoring Reports 
indicate KPDES permit violations?  [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   D-Out of Compliance-Violations Documented 
Comment:  The facility has failed to comply with the effluent limitations contained in the permit.  
 
Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) for the first through third quarters  2022 were reviewed as part of this 
inspection. 
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Second quarter 2022 DMR reported permit violations for TRC and E. coli. 
 
Third quarter 2022 DMR reported permit violations for E. coli 
Requirement:  Are samples taken in compliance with the monitoring requirements and taken at the following 
location(s):  nearest accessible point after final treatment, but prior to actual discharge or mixing with receiving 
waters? Are the samples representative of plant flow?  Are flow proportioned samples obtained when required by the 
KPDES permit?  Are grab samples collected according to the KPDES permit requirements?   Are composite samples 
collected and analyzed according to the KPDES permit conditions?  Are samples collected according to KPDES 
permit requirements?  [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   I-No Violations obs-but impending viol trends obs 
Comment:  Operator reports that lab is taking composite samples from a trough in an unused piece of equipment.  
The trough was observed to be stagnant.  This location does not appear to be representative of plant flow. 
Requirement:  Are the facility sample collection procedures adequate?  Are the samples collected in proper 
containers, preserved, and refrigerated properly?  Are all samples analyzed within the allowed holding times?  [401 
KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)] 
Compliance Status:   E-Not Evaluated 
Comment:  Inspector was not present during sampling. 
Requirement:  Have samples been analyzed by a lab that has been certified according to 401 KAR 5:320? Are all 
field parameters collected by a lab or individual that holds a Field Only certification according to 401 KAR 5:320?. 
[401 KAR 5:320] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  Samples have been collected and analyzed by Pace Analytical a properly certified lab with field testing 
certification. 
Requirement:  Have pollutants entered the waters of the Commonwealth? [KRS 224.70-110] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  No pollutants were observed entering the waters of the Commonwealth. 
Requirement:  Have surface waters been aesthetically or otherwise degraded? [401 KAR 10:031 Section 2] 
Compliance Status:   C-No Violations observed 
Comment:  No surface waters were observed being visibly degraded.  

 
Documentation 

  Photos taken     Record of visual determination of opacity 
  Documents obtained from facility     Samples taken by DEP 
  Samples taken by outside source     Regional office instrument readings taken 
  Request for Submission of Documents    Other documentation 

 
Inspector: 
 

 

 

 
Recoverable Signature

X

Signed by: Jeffrey Malsi  
 
Date:            1/3/2023 
 
Delivery Method: Email 
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